' INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements Jof“Gramos
Chemicals India Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprises the Bajance’Sheet
as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other@omprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statementfor the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. E &

In our opinion and to the best of our information and acqp_i:di'

to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the inforpigtion required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required4andégive a frue and fair view in
conformity with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting priniciplessgencrally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March:31, 2023; its Loss, total comprehensive

h

income, Changes in equity and its Cash__!l.?léiws"ﬁ{):r

e

year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

Company in accordance wi‘t_t; the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Jndia together With the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial?statements-under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, ‘arjd we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained‘is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Standalone‘Einancial Results.

The :Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and




.

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern “basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company “or, to ‘cgase

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

P

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing t
reporting process

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the F;panmal Staféments

Our  objectives are to obtain reasonable @sﬁlﬁ:“r'agce ggfput whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that.incltides our;opinion. Reasonable assurance

or in the aggregate, they could Teasonablyzbe expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the; basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in gb‘é’qrdangg wlth SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism, throlighout the audit. We also:

o Identify and asses§;the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether dueto fraudior error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and:obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for‘our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud"lé._i__'g; higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery; intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

/“¢%Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
‘auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
bf_._.;nﬁe Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the ﬁnan.cia\ ,tatéfﬁents.

.......... * *

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements “represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves_‘_fai_l;:rﬁresé‘nté_tion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone;financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the ec némic’ decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalonefinangial “statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and géalitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results‘of otiz,work; @nd (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the stapdalone finangial statements.

We communicate with those charged with_:go&%g_nancé%ﬁégarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and<significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control:that:weidentify during our audit.

We also provide those charg_ed%i_'witﬁ‘:,T: goverfiance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all rélatiohghips’ and other matters that may reasonably be
eﬁ%-and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Légg:!_ and:Regulatory Requirements

A) As required ‘by:the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued

by the Central jq:\]_r‘ernment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we “giye#in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3:and 4 of the Order.

B) As r?e"'uli:red bhy section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. W& have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
“best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.




A

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March
31, 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 ftum being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified
vpiniun un e adequacy and operating cffcotivonute uf the Cumpany's internal
financial conbiuls wilh refersnce to standalonc finanviul vlatements. 8

S

g. The Company being a Private Limited company and henceéfi'-fﬁé_,_:g?rzb isi
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to thezCompany.

d other matters to be
uireﬁi_gri’fé of section

Accordingly, we are not required to and have not reporte
included in the Auditor's report in accordance with the r
197(16) of the Act; and i

2 B G
h. With respect to the other matters to be inclided in"the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit;and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our inforrgati‘on and acgording to the explanations
given to us: # A

i. The Company has disclosed__.tﬁ:é'-.in"ﬁ:?fiac,t_ if__‘a’?ly, of pending litigations on its

financial position in its financi| statements.”

4

ii. In our opinion and as per’ thé;;.‘inforrpati’on and explanations provided to us the
Company has not entered in"tg any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, requiring g_rpvigign uhder applicable laws or accounting standards
for material foreseeable losses.

iii. There hag,_,:_beéﬁ“'ﬁ_ 'a-egé;'in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Edtication and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The‘manageiment has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
_belief,’ as¥disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
“,advapced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share

“premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any

.. othier.person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“intermediaries”), with
~the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
_ntermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
“entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company

(“ultimate Reneficlarles™ or provide anv guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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vi.

Place: Mumbai

Date : 13t May, 2023

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under iv (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the yeac

': f

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Compames (Accounts) Rules, 2014 forfmalntamlng

.....

2023

}u “"For M/s Kastury & Talati
P Chartered Accountants
Eirm s Registration No: 104908W

Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Membership No: F/41867




"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors' Report

Tho Annoxure Referred to in paragraph 5A of the Independent Aurditar's Repart of aven date
to the members of Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited on the Financial Statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023.

1)

3)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full partlculars': f Intanglble
Assets. 5

(b) The Company has a regular programime ol physivul verificalion uf its P [ierty, Plant
and Equipment by which Property, Plant and Equipment are; verlf‘ed in‘a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance withs th‘e prngramme certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were verified durlng the “Yedfzand no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. y i

(€) Accordmg to the information and explanatnons glven‘ito us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment or tntangtbte assets during the year under consideration.
(e) According to the mformatlon and explanatlons given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of ’;he Company, No proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any Benami Property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohlbltlorts) Act,,f1988 and Rules made there under.

] “.

( ) The management has conducted the physical verification of mventory at reasonable

management, is' apotopr:ate As informed to us, discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for: each class of Inventory on phyS|cal verification of the inventory as

" the! year “has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year under consideration the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any Loans or advances in the nature of loans, Secured or Unsecured, to Companies,
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any Other Parties. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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4)

5)

6)

9)

diie 2uvs

The company has not given loans, made investments, given guarantees and provided
securities covered by provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, clause 3(iv) of the aforesaid Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 are not applicable. §

(a) According to information and explanations given_,{.tc’)'-»fi

examination of the books of account, and records, the, Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Gess and other statutory dues as

(b) According to the informationand explanation given to us and the records of the
company examined by .uszthere aré no Statutory dues of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’.State“insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues which
have not been deposited on‘account of any dispute.

o

According..to the Jrformation and explanations given to us and the records of the
company, examinéd by us, the Company does not have any transactions not recorded in
the books:of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year inithe Tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

A (@) chorﬂing to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or any other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has not obtained any term |




10)

11)

-

(d) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
given ta us and the records of the company examined by us, there are no funds raised
by the Company.

(e) Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

() Based upon the audit procedures performed, the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the company examined by us, the £ompany:has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in.its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. : i

.";':f!-".‘, ”, i
(a) BRased 1pnn the andit procedures performed, thgr-.-lﬂtg[matlorl'"a'nd explanalions

given to us and the records of the company examingd by™“@s, the company has not
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or -ffn’cﬁ'e__,r:‘m public/offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions 6fclause 3(x)(a) of the Qrder

are not applicable to the Company. # i

(b) Based upon the audit procedures geﬁo‘rrﬁf’ég__and._.tﬁe information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the‘reécords of the company, the company

has not made any preferential allotment?r private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or opti‘_cf)'ﬁally conyertible) during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Orderare not applicable to the Company.

L)
b

(a) Based upon the auc;ii"'fi@;od%d‘g_reé performed and the information and explanations

given to us and based 6nr;:qhmgx‘éﬁ‘iination of the records of the company, no material
fraud by the Company or ori?;;__hg_;é:ompany has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report uhfdg_r sut-n‘""'-;‘%gption (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
by the auditors’jn“Egrm ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

Riiles, :2014:with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date
"""-"____"spect of any fraud against the Company by its officers or employees.

(_c_:):'é'As :?:re'p_g_e"é r"ifed to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints

_:;_z-'f'-"fe.ggived by the company during the year.

12)

13)

In cf_;_uf"vopinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.
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14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

sl

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an
internal audit system and is also not required to have an internal audit system as per
provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(b) In view of the above, the provisions of clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explag‘éi:fi'h_ng. given
to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons gonnected with its

directors. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act#2013afe not
applicable to the Company. e, f

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the inf )

given to us and based on our examination of the reco%é"ﬁ'f fﬁe;:cb'r;bpany, in our opinion,
the company is not required to be registered under gga'ct?gp 45 A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. s

o

ed ar‘i%i'f:gtjje information and explanations

(b) Based upon the audit procedures perform h
given to us and based on our examination;of thg,records of the company, in our opinion,
the company has not conducted any Non-Bahking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of:Régistfation (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India

as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 4934, ¢

(c) Based upon the audit prqﬁéeq_g_lres Séﬁormed and the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examiriation of the records of the company, in our opinion,

the company is not a Core; ln"\"ri_;_s“_;mfént Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank:ofindia.”

o rd

s

(d) Based upon tﬁgeﬁgdit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us and“based on.our examination of the records of the company, the group
does not have any‘Gore Investment Company (CIC).

Bag,ed;;;uﬁ%n:;ghe audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
to s and.based on our examination of the records of the company, the Company has

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization ot financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to aur
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20)

21)

Place: Mumbai
Date : 13t May, 2023

s D

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheetl dale. We, huwever, state that this is not an e33uranoc as to tho futura
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

In our Opinion, the provisions of section 135 are not applicable :;;t'ii-'"%%':,_the--:"
Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the order are not‘applical
Curnipatiy. .

s

In our Opinion, provisions for Consolidated Financial Stgtémen afe-not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the-order are not applicable
to the Company. i i, 4

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Sersne® Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 104908W

Dhiren P Talati: Partner
Membership No: F/41867
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"Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure Referred to in paragraph 5B(f) of the Independent Auditor's Report of even
date to the members of Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited on the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gramds Chigmicals
India Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with“our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. |

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
P :
The Company's management is responsible for establishing g.nq’?tggiq 3ini g‘internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial repgfting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of interfal“gontrol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). Thesg’ responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate inteﬁj;_al finangial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficiept‘conduct of its business, including adherence

to company's policies, the safeguarding of it§ assets, the“prevention and detection of frauds

%
&

Our responsibility is to expre:gs;:;-a Nz opi h on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based:on our, audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on,-_.Aui:li‘t{:Eiiqf_, Intéfhal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and, the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section:443(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

and, both issued by'the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance”Note ‘fequire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to bbta_'i"r‘i?-'r_geisbﬁable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
finaficial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all materjal respects.

Our audit/involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
ot internal control based on the mssessed rlsk. The puveduies selecled depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materlal misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to previde
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance wijth® ‘generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over fi nanc;al reportmg
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 6 ;ecords that in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dlsposruons ‘of, the dssets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactzons are recorded as
necessary to permlt preparatlon of flnan0|al statements |n accordance wnth generally

."_ s

policies or procedures may deten_cnratq

Opinion

In our opinion;“the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over “financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting.were gper aling effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on g inlermnal conliol over
financial: reportmg ‘¢riteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Flnanmal Reportlng issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regigtration No: 104908W
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Place: Mumbal Dhiren P. Talati: Partner
Date : 13th May, 2023 Membership No: F/41867




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2023
CIN: U99999MH1985PTC035486

As At As At
Particulars Notes 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
{Rs.In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, plant and equipment 2 477.78 467.13
(i) Capital work-in-progress 2 523.35 35.00
(iii) Other intangible assets 2 0.03 0.05
{b) Financial Assets
i)investments 3 - 427.98
(c) Other non-current assets 4 2.23 1.84
(d) IncomeTax (Net) 5 142.72 162.89
Total non-current assets 1,146.11 1,094.89

Il.Current assets
{a) Inventories [ 43.12 40.84

(b) Financial Assets

i)Trade receivables 7 16.39 30.97
ii)Cash and cash equivalents 8 32.68 17.75
itijOther bank balances 9 2.50 2.50
ivjLoans 10 58.56 -
{c} Current Tax (Net) 11 28.66 14.92
(d) Other current assets 12 181.06 88.63
tolal Lunient assels 362.97 185.61
Total Assets 1,509.08 1,290.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
|.Equity
|a) Share capital 13 48.00 48.00
{b) Other equity 14 918.60 924.21
Total equity 966.60 972.21
IL.Non Current Liability
(a) Deferred Tax Liability {Net) 15 23.91 13.48
Total Non current liabilities 23.91 13.48
liLLurrent liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 76.00
Trade payables
Trade payables -MSMED 17 54.69 40.00
Trade payables -Others 17 350.01 241.65
{b) Other current liabilities 18 37.86 23.16
Total current liabilities 518.56 304.81
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,509.08 1,290.50
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ) §
Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet and should be read in 1.38
conjunction therewith
As per our report of even date attached On behalf of the Board of Directors

For Kastury & Talati
Chartgred Accountants

= o b

C.AC Sameer V. Shah Rashmi S. Gauli
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 41867 Din : 00105721 Din : 08001649
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023 Date : 13th May 2023




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
ftatnmont of Rrafit and Loee for the year andesd 2188 Marsh, 2023
CIN: U39999MH1985PTC035486

Partlculars Notes
2022-2023 2021 2022
{Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)
| Revenue From Operations 19 1,167.63 793.15
Il Other Income 20 26.46 58.77
lil Total Revenue (I1+11) 1,194.09 851.92
IV Fynenses -
a) Cond al Maerlaly Sonsumey 1 an7an LT
b) Lhahges ih Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 22 (2.43) (3.14)
c) Employee Benefits Expense 23 108.30 85.10
d} Finance Casts M 1.08 0.68
e) Depreciation and Amortisation expense 2 42.25 35.95
f} Other Expenses 25 352.67 241.73
Total Expenses 1,189.84 935,54
V Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 4.25 (83.62)
VI Exceptional ltems
Vil Profit before Tax 425 (83.62)
VIil Tax Expense
Current Tax 0.73 .
Deferred Tax 10.44 6.44
Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of earlier years {net} {0.59) 3.19
Total Tax Expense 10.57 9.63
IX Profit for the Year (6.32) {93.25)

X Other Comprehenshive Income
1 i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.71 0.38
ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

2 i} Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
ii} Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income {1+2) 0.71 0.38

Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X) {5.61} {92.87)
XI Earning Per Equity Share of Face Value of Rs. 100 each 29

Basic (in Rs.} {13.16) {194.28)

Diluted {in Rs.) (13.16) (194.28)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet and should be read in
conjunction therewith

As per vut reporl ol even ddle attached On behalt of the Board of Directors
For Kastury & Talati
Chargered Accountants

m e ML 6?\“”);

wADniren P 1818t Sameer V. Shah Rashmt S. Gavli
Pailnel virectar threctar
Membership No. 41867 Din : 00105721 Din : 08001649
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 13th May 2023 Date : 13th May 2023




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars 20222023 2021-2022
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 4,27 (83.61}
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 42.25 35.95
Loss on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipement = .
Employee ESOP compensation = .
Finance Cost 1.08 0.58

43.33 36.53
Less :
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - -
Net Gain on Investments 49.59 44.01
Profit on Sale of Property,Plant & Equipement - .
Dividend Received - =

(9.59) {44.01)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 38.01 (21.049)
Adjustments for :
Trade and Other Receivables (136.80) (13.25)
Inventories (2.27) (7.19)
Trade and Other Payables 139.05 191.41

(0.02) 170.97
Cash generated from operations 37.99 79.88
Income taxes paid (Net of Refund) 571 (11.81)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 43.70 68.08
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payment to acquire Property, plant & equipments (541.24) {133.56)
Praceeeds from Sale of Property, plant & equipments = -
Purchase of Investment 5.24 =
Sale of Investment 432.33 57.96
Dividend Income = =
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (103.67) (75.59)
Cash Flow from Financing Activites
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings - =
Dividend paid = -
Tax on dividend paid - .
Borrowings 76.00 .
Finance Cost (1.08) (0.58)
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) 74.92 (0.58)
Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash & Cash Activities (A+B+C) 14.93 (8.11)
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as on Opening 20.25 28.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances as an Closing 35.18 20.25

For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants
FRN-1 W

C.A.Dhiren P.Talati
Partner

Membership No. 41867
Place: Mumbai

Nate : 13th May 2023
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By Order of the of the Board of Directors
For Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

e\

Sameer V Shah Rashmi S Gavli
Director Director
Din: 00105721 Din: 08001649




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2023

(2) Equity share capital for the year ended 31st March 2023 Rs. in Lakhs

Mo, of Sharey Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2022 48,000 48 NN
Changes i eyuity shate capital - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 48,000 48,00
{a) Equity share capital for the year ended 31st March 2022

No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2021 48,000 48 0N
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 B 48,000 48.00

(b) Other Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023

Reserves and Surplus

Statement of other

comprehensive

Income

Pacticulars

Retained
carmingy/ Protit &
Loss Account

Securities

aOnaral Hotorne [
premium

Remeasurements of

the net defined
benefit Plans

Tutal utlier eyulty

Balance as at 31st March 2022

249.75 - 674.48

924.22

Tulal Cunprclensive

Prefit for the year

{nat)

(LAY

Other comprehensivé income for the year

Income Tax of Earlier Years

Transactions with owners of the comgany

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares

Interim Dividend Distribution Tax

Dividend on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax

Premium on allotment of shares by way of right issue

Transferred to General Reserve

Transferred from Retained Earnings

Balance as at 31st March 2023

249.75 - 668.87

0.71

919.33

(b) Other Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022

Reserves and Surplus 5t

of other comprehensive income

Particulars

Retained
earnings/Profit &
Loss Account

Securities

General Reserve .
premium

Remeasurements of
the net defined
benefit Plans

Total other equity

Balance as at 31st March 2022

249.75 767.35

1,017.09

Total Comprehensive

Profit for the year

(93.25)

(93.25)

Other comprehensive income for the year

0.38

0.38

Income Tax of Earlier Years

Transactions with owners of the company

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares

Interim Dividend Distribution Tax

Dividend on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax of earlier year

Transferred to General Reserve

Transferred from Retained Earnings

iBaIance as at 31st March 2022

674.48

249.75

924.22

As per our attached report of even date.
For M/s Kastury & Talati
Chartered Accountants

FRN-104908W
"é

Dhiren P. Talati
Partner

Membership No. 41867
Place: Mumbai
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

S

Sameer V. Shah
Director

b

Rashmi $. Gavli
Director




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2023

COMPANY INFORMATION:

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Private Limited company domiciled and
incorporated in India under the Indian Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is
located at EL-71,Chembond Centre,MIDC,Mahape, Navi Mumbai-400 710

Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited Company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of
chemically treated Tak-Rag/ Dust-free Cloth.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS'} notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial
statements except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.2 Functional and presentation Currency

The finoncial statcments arc prepared in INR, whicliis Uie cotnpdiry's functiuial currenty and Is rounded uff
to the nearest lakhs except olherwise indicdled,

1.3 Current / Non Current Classification:
Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:
i the assel/liabilily is expected to be realised/ settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
ii. the asset is intended for sale or consumption;
jil. the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iv. the asset/llablhty is expected to be realised/ settled within twelve months after the reporting

period @‘51 UR y‘A
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V. the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

hability tor at least twelve months after the reporting date;

vi. in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets and liabilities are classitied as non-current

For the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities, thc Company has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to
the Companics Act, 2013. This is based on the nature of productl/services and thie Lime laken belween the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents.

1.4 Use of Estimates

1.5

a)

The prepuration of [ IRaneial Statementy i m conlonnnly vl nd A% avnd eguines U Mlanagement Lo mdh
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent liabilities on the date of Financial Statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Accounting estimates can change from period to period. Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made, and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

Property, Plant and Equipment

Measurement at recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualities as an asset is measured on initial recognition at
cost An item of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following intial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at
its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if any.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and
equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including taxes (other
than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), duties, freight and other directly attributable
costs related to the acquisition or construction of the respective assets. Profit or Loss on disposal of tangible
assetsis recngnised in the Statemenl af Poolil gl Tosy

Subsequent Measurement:

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s rarrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriats, onlv whign il ia pivlalde tiat Tutuee evonmmnie BT g Laesb sl chie D sl flesar 1

the Campany and the rost of the item ran he measired reliahly The carrying amannt of any component

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profitane-Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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b)

c)

d)

Capital work in progress
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress.

Depreciation and Amortization:

Depreciation on PPE* (other than free hold and lease hold land) has been provided on Written Down Value
basis at the rates prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the primary period of lease.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
Derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the item is derecognised.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are inclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST) and net of returns, trade discount or rebates and
applicable taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government and which are levied on such sales.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company.

i. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of all significant risks and rewards

of ownership to the buyer as per terms of Contract.
. Revenue from services is recognised pro-rata as and when services are rendered.
iii. Interest income is recognised using effective interest method on time proportion basis

taking in to account the amount outstanding.
iv. Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive is established by the
reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease Accounting
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals on
assets and premises taken on operating lease are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on an accrual basis over the lease term.

Inventory
Inventories are valued at lower of the cost determined on weighted average basis or net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Damaged, unserviceable
and inert stocks are valued at net realizable value.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable

from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and
e —

condition
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f)

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of direct materials, direct labour, an
appropriate allocation of production overheads, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

The company considers factors like estimated shelf life, product discontinuances and ageing of inventory in
determining the provision for slow moving, ohsolete and nther non-saleable invenlory and adjusls the
inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.

Impairment of Assets

i) Impairment of financial assets

the (:nmpany recagnizes lass allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) modal for the financial assets
which are not fair valued Lthiough prolil or luss. Loss allowance tor trade recelvables with ho significant
financing component is measured based on lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or Reversal) that is
required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

At Balance Sheet date, an assessment is done to determine whether there is any indication of impairment in
the carrying amount of the Company’s fixed assets. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

An assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The carrying amount of the fixed asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the assetin prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year.

After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge
for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount on Written Down
Value basis.

Financial Instruments
Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as

foreign currency foreign exchan rward contracts, futures and currency options.

A
o CHARTERED E
= ACCOUNTAWTS 25
* o

S




i) Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement;

Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVYOCI) ur [air value Lhiough profit and loss (FVTPL) on the basls
nf its husinrss model for managing the tinancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset.

Inilial recognilion and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
tair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributahle to the acquisition of the financial
assetl. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data
from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recognised as a gain or loss in
the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

Howaevaer, trado receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measurad at
transaction price.

Subseguent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below

criteria:
i e Corprany's bayvines moedul for managing tho financlal accot and
ii.  The conliacludl tash flow characteristics of the flnanclal asset.
Based oh the above criteria, the Lompany classities rts tinancial assels inlu Uhe [ullowing Lalegories.

i. Financial assets measured.at amortised cost
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ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the
Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to certain investments in debt instruments. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income and impairment losses
and its reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Further, the Company, through an irrevocable clection at initial recognition, has measured certain
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by
instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor arc contingent consideration
recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCI. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probablc that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be
measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets. cumulative gain ar loss previously recagnised in OC) is nat
reclassified from the equity to Statement ULF_;&HL and Luss.
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Further, the Company, through an irrevocable election at initial recognition, has measured certain
investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI. The Company has made such election on an instrument by
instrument basis. These equity instruments are neither held for trading nor are contingent consideration
recognised under a business combination. Pursuant to such irrevocable election, subsequent changes in
the fair value of such equity instruments are recognised in OCl. However, the Company recognises dividend
income from such instruments in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount can be

measured reliably.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is not
reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer such
cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL;

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as explained
above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in
subsidiary and associate companies. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:
i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement
(thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the financial asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognise such
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in (ii) above for financial assets
measured at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is

recognised in the Statement of Profit and L?}.S;‘.‘_’F:“*
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss
allowance on the following:

i. Trade receivables

i, Finuntiul usstls micusured ul amortised eost (athar than trache recelvaliles)

iil. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to
lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowanre In case nf other assets (hsted as (i) and (iii)
above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset
since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to
12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and
recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case
of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability.

Where Lhe fair value of a financial llabllity at Initlal recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognised as a gain or loss in the Statement
of Profil and Luss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted market price in an
active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses data
trom ohservable markets (1.e. level 2 inpul).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference
bctween the fair value and transaction price is defened approprialely and recognised ds a galn or loss In
the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor
that market participants take into account when pricing the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities of the Company are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial
recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortisation using the effective

interest method of the difference between-the.jnitial recognition amount and the maturity amount is
,\(;\Uﬁy
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8)

h)

added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over the
relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortised cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding effect of the amortisation under effective interest method is recognised as interest
expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value.

Provisions:

The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a
result of a past event that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an out flow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liability:

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will nol require an oulllow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
no provision or disclosure is made’, -




j) Fair Value Measurement

The Company's measures Financial Instruments at fair value at each Balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

— In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
— Inthe absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

~ All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)
market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
— Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
— Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

k) Foreign Currency Translation:

Initial recognition:

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted in the functional
currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising
on foreign exchange transactions settied during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date:

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the Company are restated at the
year-end closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these translations are charged to

the statement of profit and loss v%.‘ URy
/s
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1)

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses.

m} Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises of current and deferred tax expense and is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in OCL.

a. Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

b. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under Income Tax Act, 1961.However, in case of temporary differences that arise from
initial recognition of asset or liability in a transaction (other than in a business combination) that affect
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also,
for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences (if any) to the
extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part
or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized. Such reductions are reversed when the probability of

the future taaable prufils inproves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case,
the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authgri the Company.

o CHARTERED &
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n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand,
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other
short term highly liquid investments net of bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand as these
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

o) Employce Bencfits:

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders
the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employce
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered ds d liabilily (daucrued expense) after
doducting any amount alrcady paid. The Company daca not allow any accumulation of lcave balance
or encashment thereot.

Post-Employment Benefits:

I.  Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are Employee's Provident Fund scheme, Employee state insurance
scheme for all applicable employees and superannuation scheme for eligible employees. The
Company contribution for the year paid / payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

II.  Defined Benefit plans:

Provident Fund scheme
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund scheme in
accordance with the statutory provisions.

Gratuity
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees. The Company contributes to
a separate entity (a fund) towards meeting the Gratuity obligation.

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations
recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined
benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the
defined benefit liahility / (asset) are recognized in the statement of profit and Inss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/ {asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses

e the retiarm an tha plan seosty (wofuding anesonts indudod i oot intoruet un tie ot deflined
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benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are
not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

The Company presents the above liability/(asset) as current and non-current in the Balance Sheet
as per actuarial valuation by the independent actuary.

p) Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized,
if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

q) Segment Reporting:

t)

The Company has determined that it operates in a single business segment, namely “Manufacturing of
chemically specialize in liquid plastic products based on PVC such as PVC Plastisols, PVC Sealants, PVC
Underbody Coatings, PVC Organisols and PVC Protective Coatings.” As per IND AS-108 ‘Operating
Segments’, if a financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements of a parent that is
within the scope of Ind AS-108 as well as the parent’s separate financial statements, segment information
is required only in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, information required to be
presented under Ind AS-108 Operating Segments has been given in the consolidated financial statements.

Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
phrend of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Financial Statements.
Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

Non-current Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions required to
complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will be made
or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held for sale only if the
management expects to complete the sale within one year from the date of classification.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
the fair value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company with the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for treasury shares. Diluted Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

)
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Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note 3: Financial Assets

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

{i} Investment
Investment in Mutual Fund carried at fair value through Profit and Loss

(i) Nil (2,76,835.70) Units Kotak Standard Multicap Fund-Growth - 143.87
(i) Nil {1,24,058.06) Units Mirae Asset India Equity Fund-Growth E 96.04
(v) Nil {3,98,474.65) Units ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund Coll 1 AC - 94.26
{vi) Nil {2,20,253 84) Units Kotak Bond STP{5) - 93.80
Total = 427,98
7) ApRrefiate value of tnvastmente
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Market Value - 427.98
Note 4: Other non-current assets
Puslivuluio As Af QA
AL 1D PARY Bk 1)
Security Deposits :
Deposit with MIDC 0.13 0.13
Deposit with MSFR 0.69 0.69
Dy erit with MCCDCQ U.us U.us
Gratuity 0.73 0.34
Total 2.23 1.84
Note 5: Income tax assets (net})
Particulars As At St
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax Paid in advance {Net of Provision) 142,72 162.89
Total 142.72 162.89
Note 6 : Inventories
Particulars ASAH As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw Materials 30.09 29.86
Packing Matorials LR L 49
Finlshed Goods 9.90 7.50
Tiading Guonh 0.0
Total 43.12 40.84
Note 7: Trade Receivables
Particulars R As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Trade receivables
a) Considered good - Secured -4 -
b) Considered good -Unsecured 16.39 30.97
c) Trade receivables -Significant risk 0.39 0.30
d) Trade receivables -credit impaired - -
16.78 31.27
Less : Trade receivables -Significant risk (0.39) (0.30)
Total 16.39 30.97
Note 8:Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars pIGE -

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :
In current accounts
Cash on hand

32,61 17.70
0.07 0.05
Total 32.68 17.75




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note 9:0ther bank balances

g As At As At
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bank balance other than above
Deposit held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantee 2.50 2.50
Total 2.50 2.50
Note 10: Loans
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Loans & Advances 58.56 -
Total 58.56 -
Note 11: Current tax assets (net)
Particulars S LS
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax Paid in advance {Net of Provision) 28.66 14.92
Total 28.66 14.92
Note 12: Other Current Assets
Particulars ASHt As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
GST Receivable (net) 176.95 85.77
Prepaid Expenses 2.16 1.98
Accrued Interest on Bank Deposit 0.25 0.26
Gratuity 0.48 0.60
Others 1.22 0.02
Total 181.06 88.63
Note 13: Share capital
particul As At As At
culars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised share capital
1,00,000, (Previous years: 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 100.00 100.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
48,000 {Previous years: 48,000} Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 48.00 48.00

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 48.00 48.00

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at 31sh March, 2023

Equity shares No. of As At March As At March
shares 31,2023 31,2022
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 48,000 48.00 48.00
Add: Issued during the year for cash =
Less : Bought Back during the year -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 48,000 48.00 48.00

b. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par Value of Rs,10/-per share.Each Share holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share

In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive reamining assets of the Company,after distribution of all
preferrential amounts.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

C. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares capital in aggregate in the Company

Name of Shareholders % of As At March As At March
Holding 31, 2023 31, 2022
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited . 100'% 48,000 48,000

.‘htjrz he!f%

Shareholding of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited | Ividuals as nominees of the Company.




firamog Chemicals India Privata Limitad

Notes torming part of finanrial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

D. Datails of shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

A .
S.No Promoter Name et % of Total ** % change during
shares** the year***
1 Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 47999 99,99
. No change
2 Sameer V. Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0.002
Shareholding of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited includes 1 shares held by individuals as nominees of the Company.
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
S.No Promoter Name Hoiof % of Total ** % change during
shares** the year***
1 Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 47999 99.99
No change
2 Sameer V. $Shah Jtly Shilpa S. Shah* 1 0.002
Shareholding of Phiroze Sethna Private Limited includes 1 shares held by individuals as nominees of the Company.
Note 14: Other Equity
As At As At

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

General Reserve

Opening Balance 249.75 249,75
Add . anmiount tansorret frsm SUplus balance (A tha statameant ot proht and loss

Add / (Less) : Adjustment of Mutual Fund fair Value

Closing balance 249.75 240,75

Retained earnings: Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance 674.47 767.35
Less: Profit / (Loss) for the period (6.32) (93.25)
Net surplus / {deficit) in the statement of profit and loss 668.15 674.10
Less: Appropriation

Other Ocmprehensive income 0.71 0.38
Tax on OCl - =

Uividend on equity shares tor the vear : ;
Dividend distribution tax on dividend - -
Balance at the end of the year 668.86 674.47

Total 018.60 924.21

Note 15 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars ASIAL As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mat Credit (8.55} (7.82)
Fixed Assets 32.63 26.05
Gratuity (0.20) (0.09)
Fair Value Investment - (4.66)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0.03 (0.00)
Total 23.91 13.48
Note 16: Borrowings
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Loan Received From Phiroze Sethna Pyt Ltd — 76.00

Total 76.00 =

(o5 cHaRTERED
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Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited

Wotas forming part of financial statements for the penod ended March 31, 2021

Note 17: Trade Payahles

Particulars

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Others

Enr Ralatad party franeantion Rofar Mata Ma 34

As At
March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

54 69 4000
350,01 241.65
Tulul A4, 20 210

The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act) as at the year end. The disclasure

pursuant to the sald Act s as under..

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest acerued and due ta suppliers nnder MSMFD Act, 200A nn the ahnve amannt

Interest paid/adjusted to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 {Section 16)

As At
March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

54.69

0,59

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for payments already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act,

2006

0.59

40.00

0.03

0.03

The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

Note 18 : Other Current Liability

Particulars

Statutory Dues :

TDS

Profession tax
Accrued Expenses
Payable to Employees

Note 19 : Revenue from operations

Particulars

Sale of Products : Manufactured Goods
Other Operating revenue
Miscellaneous Income

Note 20 : Other income

Dartisulare

Rent Received [ Tds Rs.1.44(Tds Rs.1.33) }
Interest Received on Bank Deposit
N sl puived i

Net gain on Sale/fair valuation of investments through profit & loss

Profit/(Luss) vn Sale of Fixed assets
Miscellaneous Income

For Related party transaction Refer Note No.34
Note 21 : Cost of Materials Consumed
Particulars

Raw Materials Consumed
Packing Material

P T

As At
March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

2.50 0.92
0.49 0.54
13.95 16.87
20.92 4.83
Total 37.86 23.16
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
1,167.59 793,14
0.04 0.01
Total 1,167.63 793.15
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
n lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
14.40 14.64
0.11 0.12
2.3 =
9.59 44.01
0.00 -
total 26.46 58.77
2022-2023 (Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
654,56 550.60
33.40 24.71
Total 687.96 575.31




Gramos Chemicals India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note 22 : Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Particulars

(a) Finished products/ Stock in Trade (At Close)
Finished products

Aot e L |yl

Irading goods

(b) Finished products/ Stock in Trade {At commencement)
Finished products

Semifinished products

Trading goods

(Increase) / Decrease in stocks

Note 23 : Lmployee benefits expense

Particulars

Salarles, Incentives and Bohtis
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Tatal

Pon Blaret ] i by U A ALLULH MO0 NULY 1,34
The Company's nhligation tawards the Gratnity Fund is = Nafinad Renafit Rlan,
NetRily nf arfiarial adiatinn ara ar fallone:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest on defined benefit obligation

(Benefits paid)

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising on account of exprience changes

Llosing defined benetit obligation

Changes in the fair value of assets in case of Gratuity representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances
thereof:

Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer Contributions

Amount not recognised due to Asset limit (P.Y)

Equitable Fund transfer in

Interest on plan asets

Expected return on plan assets not included in the interest income
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Benefit paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

Acturial assumption:
Discount rate
Salary escalation

Profit & Loss Account Expense

Current service cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability / (assets}
{Gains) / losses on settlement

Closing fair value of plan assets

Reconcilation of Net Liablity / Asset

Opening net defined benefit liabilty / (asset)
Expense charged to profit & loss account
Amount recognized outside profit & loss account
Employer contributions

Closing fair value of plan assets

Movement in Benefit Obligations

Opening net defined benefit obligation

Current Serice Cost

Interest on defined benefit obligation

Remeasurements due to :

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of exprience changes

Bunufit puid

tlacing trcamiun of plan accote

2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
9.73 6.50
U4 1.80
0.03 -
9.93 7.50
6.50 4.30
.00 nNR
.00 436
{2.43) (3.14)
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs} {Rs in lakhs}
91.03 75.00
5.28 4.87
12.00 5.24
Qfulf nwin
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs}) (Rs in lakhs)
4,79 4.14
0.54 0.79
0.34 0.28
(0.82) (0.42)
4.86 4.79
573 5.3
0.04 0.04
0.41 0.36
(0.11) (0.04)
6.07 5.73
7.5% 7.10%
5% 5%
0.54 0.79
{0.07) {0.08)
0.48 0.71
(0.90) (1.22)
0.48 0.71
(0.71) (0.38)
(1.13) {0.90)
4.79 4.14
0.54 0.79
0.34 0.28
(0.82) (0.42)
4.80 4.78
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit ohligation by the amounts shown bejow.

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) - Gratuity {11.10) 13.10 (12.20) 14,60
Future salary growth (1% movement) - Gratuity 13.30 (11.40) 14.80 [12.600

The above sensitivity analyses have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in
market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it does not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to others. In calculating the sensitivity,

project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied.

Expected future cash flows

For year

The expected maturity analysis is as follows : For year ended |ended

31.3.2023 31.3.2022
Expected benefits for year 1 0.09 0.07
Expected benefits for year 2 0.10 0.09
Expected benefits for year 3 0.10 0.09
Expected benefits for year 4 0.10 0.10
Expected benefits for year 5 0.11 0.10
Expected benefits for year 6 and above 4,10 3.83

The Management has relied on the overall actuarial valuation conducted by the actuary. However experience adjustments on plan liabilities and assets are not
readily available and hence not disclosed. The expected return on plan assets is as furnished by the Actuary appointed by the Company.

Note 24 : Finance Cost

Particulars

Interest Expense
Bank Interest
MSME Interest
Total

Note 25 : Other expenses

Particulars

Electricity Charges
Power & Fuel Mnufacturing
Labour charges for Manufacturing
Repairs :
(i} To Machinery
(ii) To Building
{iii} To Others
Printing and Stationery
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Travelling Expenses
Conveyance
Telephone Expenses
Carriage and Freight
Management Consultancy Fees
Legal and Professional Fees
Auditors Remuneration
Cash Discount
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Water Charges
Vehicle Expenses
Sales Tax Expenses
Security Charges
Filing Fees
Inspection Charges
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Miscellaneous Expenses
Commission on sales
Input G5T Disallowed
Bad Debts
Provision for Doubtful Debts
Nebit Ral written nff
Credit Bal written off

Total

For Related party transaction Refer Note No.30

Auditor's Remuncration consists af:

Particulars

Statutory Audit Fees
Taxation and Other Matters
Tax Audit

& CHARTERED E'.
= ACOUNTANTS )} roras

2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Rs in [akhs)
0.49 0.55
0.59 0.03
1.08 0.58
2022-2023 (Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
23.71 23.69
0.24
140.60 67.11
18,38 11.21
1.16 0.02
11.91 12.27
2.36 0.97
6.12 4.20
3.09 1.74
6.72 4.85
0.61 1.42
1.65 0.86
12.67 11.69
57.24 57.24
26.97 26,30
3.78 152
1.20 0.98
0.24 0.15
1.13 0.60
2.40 1.61
1.82 1.93
16,92 15,33
0.03 0.02
0.66 122
= 0.04
4.64 4.57
- 0.56
5868 U.3s
0.45 0.20
0.09 (11.20}
0.61
B {0.31)
352.67 241.73
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
2,19 1.22
0.32 0.30
1.28
3.78 1.52




Gramos Chemicals India Privatc Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023
Note 26 :Value Of Imports Calculated On CIF Basis
Particulars
Value of Imports calculated on C.I.F.basis
Raw Materials
Note 27 :Expenditure In Foreign Currency

Particulars

T onditony i fone ign o nimin y (Traval)

Note 28 :Value Of Exports Calculated Un FUB Value

particulars

F.0.B.Value of Exports

Note 29 : Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Net Profit available to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs}

Total number of Equity Shares (Face value of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up)
Weighted No. of Equity Shares

Basic Earnings per Share (in Rupees}
Diluted No. of Equity Shares

Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rupees)

2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs} (Rs in lakhs)
il wil
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Bs in lalchs)
il il
20222023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
224.39 206.29
2022-2023 {Rs 2021-2022
in lakhs}) (Rs in lakhs)
(6.32) {93.25)
48000 48000
48000 48000
(13.16) (194.28)
48000 48000
(13.16) (194.28)
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30 Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables

Asgcing for trade Pavables outstanding a5 on 315 Mar'23 is as follows
{Rs. In Lukhs)
Purticulirs Dutstanding fur (ollovwing periads from due date of pay mentsi
Nt Bue Lessthan § yr  11-2 Yrs -3 Yrs More than 3 Yrs | Total

11 MSME 3130 23.40 54.69
A1} Coiliers 142.14 14041 66.89 (0.09) 0.66 350.01
T Drisputed dises - MSME =
IV} Disputed dues - Ditheny
Acerued experes

Net trade payahles

Ageing for trod rpliles outstanding s on 315t Mar'22 is ps follows ;

404.70

{is. In Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following perieds from due dite of puyments#
Not Duc Less than L yr [1-2Yrs 2-3Yrs More than 3 Yrs | Total

|13 MSME 3369 7.31 40.00
) Cibers 93.02 130.21 1833 (019 028 24|65

1) Drisputed dies - MSME =

1V} Dispruted dues - Othiers
Accrued expenses

Net tradce payables

281.65
—

31 Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables
A e reccivibiles outstumding as on

fnr

(R, In Bkl
Puriiculnrs Ouestanding for fullowing perinds from due date of payments®

Less than 6 6 months- More than
Not Due months 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years 3 years Total

[) Undisputed trade receivables —
considered goods 17.41 041 (030 027 (0.76) (0.25) 16.78

1) Undisputed trade receivabies — which
have significant increase in credit risk
iii) undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good

v) Disputed trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk
i) Disputed trade receivables - eredit
impaired

Less - Alowanee for doubitful (rade bles .39
Trade receivables 16.39

(s fn Lakdiay

Particulirs Outstanding for fnllowing periods fram due date of piymentsit
Less than 6 6 months- More than

Not Due months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears 3 years Total
1} Undisputed trade receivables —
considered goods 24.66 6,79 030 -0.23 -0.23 -0.02 31.27
11} Undisputed trade recervables — which
have significant mcrease in credit risk (.00
iii) undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired
iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good
v) Disputed trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk
vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired 4
Less o Allgwanee for doubtful made receivahles 0.30
Trade receivables 3097

32 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE Il TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The Company does nothae any benami property held in its name. No praceedings have been inititated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami propertyunder the Benami Transactions(Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or govemment or any government authority.

i The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Conmpanies Act, 2013

read with the Companies {Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,

v Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

1 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall :
(a) Directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behal{ of the ultimate beneficiaries

11 The Cormpany has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

8 search or survey),

v There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 |/ {AL
that has not been recorded in the books of account, D CHA RTERED

= AcCounTaNTs 5

W

vi The Company has not traded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual currency during the year.
e
¥ '
r)
TR A

o«

vii The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond ihe Matutory ﬁﬁ'r!ﬁd.
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33 Disclosure of Ratios : (Rs. In Lakhs)
Ratios As at March | As at March
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
a Current Ratio
= Current Assets/Current Liabilities 0.70 0.64
b Debt Equity Ratio
= (Short Term Debt+Long Term Debt+Other Fixed Payments)/ 0.00 0.00
Shareholder's Equity ' '
o Debt Service Coverage Ratio
= Net Operating Income/ Debt Service 0.00 0.00
d Return on Equity Ratio
= Net Income/ Shareholders Equity 0.00 {0.09)
e Inventory Turnover Ratio
= Cost of Goods Sold/ Average Inventory 16.33 15.36
f Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio
= Net Credit sales/ Average Accounts Receivable 29.59 12.69
g Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
= Credit Purchases/ Average Accounts Payable 2.00 3.03
h Net Capital Turnover Ratio
= Net Sales/ Working Capital (7.50) (7.26)
i Net Profit Ratio
= Net Profit/ Net Sales (0.01) (0.12)
j Return on Capital Employed
= Earnings Before Interest and Tax/ Capital Employed 0.11 (1.73)
o T
%5'{ URYy €
i L:("
ff <

e
. { L ¥
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ffeamne Chomicnie Indin Privata Limited
Note:34. Related Party Disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Relates Party Disclosures", are given below :

2) Ralationship;
I. Ultimate Holding Company §
Chembond Chemicals Limited

ii. Holding Company :
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

iii. Fellow Associate and Fellow Subsidiary Companies :
Chembond Material Technologies Private Limited
Chembond Biosciences Limited

Chembond Polymers and Materials Limited

Chembond Water Technologies Limited

Chemhand Calvatis Industrial Hygiene Systams Limited
Chemhand Distribution Limited

B Moy Plusiupciicnl Fasuiicl aud disin reladves (isnr)
Ry Managuimunl Poryonngl -

hir.Sameer V Shoh

Mr.Nirmal V Shah

Mrs Rashmi Gavli

mirsharad wagle

Mr.Aspi Godrej

Relatives :

Padma V Shah, Dr.shilpa S. Shah,Raunaq Shah,Amrita S Shah,Shashank {Amrita Husband), Malika $ Shah, Mamta N. Shah, Alpana S Shah,Jyoti Mehta,Rahil
Shals,IGhita Shah,Sanieer L Qavli,3unila L, Qavll,Rall I Tlpuls, Mduput 3. Savll, Tusliar Wi Tipnls sugitd Tustidt 1pnis Prashant L @avil palay| s,
Wakaskar,Mina Lhelani,Kalyanj Ghelani,Kanta Ghelanr,Jayant / Madhusudan,Rekha / Sudha,

Entities over which Key Mangement Personnel are able to exercise influence :
Balu Investment Services Pvt Ltd

Bullows India Private Limited

CCL Opto Electronics Private Limited

Finor Piplaj Chemicals Limited

Sand N Venturs Pvt Ltd

GTK Intermediates Private Limited

Visan Holdings and Financial Services Private Limited
QOriano Clean Energy Private Limited

Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd

CCL Product LLC

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
Rs in Lakhs

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Ulti i
timate Fellow Ultimate Fellow KnP

Description of the nature of transactions Holdin, KMP Holdi
Pt Haldin "8 | subsidrary Holding "8 | siitssidrary

For the year ended as on

sale Of Goods
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 0.07
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 0.11 252
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 443.03
Chembond Clean Water Technologies Ltd

327.04

Sub Contract Revenue
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 24266

Reimbursement Of Expenses
Cliernbuid Matetial Techinulugles Pyl Lid 30,13 2611
Chembaond Chemicals Ltd 051 197
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 1.47
Management Fees paid
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 57.24 57.24

Rent Received
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited B.60 13.32
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 7.80 132

Rent Paid
Chembond Chemicals Limited 0.11
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited

Cansultancy Paid
CCL Products LLC 15.04 19.42
Interest Paid
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 0.30

Reimbursement Of Income

Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 0.11
Purchase of Goods
Phirate Sethna Private Limited 1.94 0.62
Chambond Chemicals Limited 0.22
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 67.51 80.30

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 12.49 9.22
Chembond Chemicals Limited E.86
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 5.46

Purchase of Consumbale Iteams ﬁ“\

Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 0.52 é'i U Rydl'

Lean Taken
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 76.00 {

< CUARTERED
< ACQOUNTANT!

*

Ly ey

Trade Payables
Phiroze Sethna Private Limited 10.06
Chembond Material Technologies Pvt Ltd 186.34
Chembond Chemicals Ltd 037

548

148.84

\\):

iy
£
W
o
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35 Contingent liabilities and commitments (To the extent not provided for}

Particulars

2022-2023

2021-2022

(i) Contingent linilities

Income Tax (TDS)
Sales Tax
Guiarat Value Added tax

(iiii) Capital Commitments

Tatal

(a) Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respect to:

(i} Counter Guarantees given by Company for Bank Guarnatees issued

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for {net of advances)

3G Tinancial indliunients = Fait values and tisk management
A Arconnting rlassification and fair valuar

7531

13.81

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, It does not include fair
value informatian far financial assets and financial liahilities nat measured at fair value if the carrying amaunt in a rensanahle appravimntinn nf fair vl

Particulors

As at 31 March 2023

Larrying amount

Fair value

Fair value
Untsugh ol
and loss

Fair valua through
othar
comprehensive

income

Amotised Cost

Total

Level 1

level? Teupl R

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Including other
bank balances}

Investments

- Mutual Funds

- Equity Shares (Quoted)

- Equity Shares (Ungquoted)

- Preference shares and bonds
Trade and other receivables
Loans

Other financial assets

35.18

16.39
58.56

35.18

TOTAL

110.13

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings {Including current
maturity of Long term borrowings}
Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

76.00
404.70

TOTAL

480.70

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

CAHyig amount

Fair value

Fair value
through profit
and loss

Fair value through
other
comprehensive
income

Amotised Cost

Total

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Including other
bank balances}

Investments

- Mutual Funds

- Equity Shares (Quoted)

- Equity Shares (Ungquoted)

- Preference shares and bonds
Trade and other receivables
Loans

Other financial assets

427.98

20.25

30.97

20.25

427.98

TOTAL

427 98

51.21

427.98

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings (Including current
maturity of Long term borrowings)
Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

TOTAL

281.65

Fair values far financial instruments carried at am

not been disclosed separately.

o CHARTERED +

= ACCOUNTANTS =5
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B. Measurement of fair values

Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, using a three
level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to un-observivile inputs (Level 3 measurements). Fair value of derivative financial assets and
liabilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing market interest rate curves. The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind

AS 107 are described below:
Level 1: Heirarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. e.g. unlisted equity securities,

Transfers between Levels
There are no transfers betweeen the levels

C. Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,

i. Risk management framework

Risk Management is an integral part of the Company's plans and operations. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of

the Company risk management framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company risk management policies.
The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk

management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

fi. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securities, cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bonds etc.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

Credit risk is the risk of possible default by the counter party resulting in a financial loss.
The Company manages credit risk through various internal policies and procedures setforth for effective control over credit exposure, These are managed by way of setting
Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes that sufficient provision is mad for credit risk wherever credit is

extended to customers,

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy, Investment of surplus funds are made in

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired,
ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be Mle to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as

possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to
the Company’s reputation,

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and
capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates ). Market risk is attributMle to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-
term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus, the
Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

a) Currency risk
The Compnay is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchase, and other expenses are denominated and the
functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees (INR). The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are

EURO and USD.
Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data amount the Company's exposuie o curtency risk as reported to the management af the Campany 1s as follows:
The Camnanv has entered intn farward rantracts tn harga tha faraign cieranciy ricke aricing fram amonnte dacignetad in faraign survensy The cuwilu pu Ly Lo auch fucwend
contract is a bank, Forward contracts nutstanding at the year end are:

Currency E":::/"s':"“’ As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/3/2022

Foreign Currency Indian Currency  Foreign Currency  Indian Currency

Hsn Buy - -

Foroign Curranoy Dupoaurea nt the yenr «pil ol
hedged by detivative instrurments:

As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/3/2022

Foreign Currency Indian Currency  Foreign Currency  Indian Currency

US Dollars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Euro 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
US Dollars 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00




b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Investment committee
manages and constantly reviews the interest rate movements in the market. This risk is mitigated by the Company by investing the funds in varioustenors depending on the
liquidity needs of the Company. The Company's exposures to interest rate risk is not significant.

37 Tax Reconciliation 2022-2023 2021-2022
The income tax expense consists of the
(a) followings: (Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars
Current Income Tax 0.73 0.00
Deferred Tax Expense 10.44 6.44
Short/(Excess) provision of Income Tax of -0.59 3.19

earlier years {net)
Tax expense for the year 10.57 9.63

Reconciliation of tax expense and the
(b) accounting profit multiplied by India's tax Rate

Profit before income tax expense 4.25 -83.62

lodian slatuluty incoie Laa tdle Lb.bUs 21820

Expected Income Tax expenses 0.71 - 4
Pdll A

| ax éHect ot amounts which are not deductible
{allowable) in calculating taxable income:

Biw v paernpn ot (o e ¥

Additinnal allowances/deduction 0.02

Transition gain - e

Others -0.59 319 |

Current Tax (A) -0.57 3.19

Part B .

Deferred Tax Effect at the rate of: 16.69% 16.69%
Depreciation 6.58 6.13
Investments at Fair Value 4.66 4.69
Gratuity {0.11) 0.24
MAT Credit {0.73) (7.82)
Other Deferred tax Asset - -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 0.03 3.20

Deferred Tax (B) 10.43 6.44

Tax Expense {A+B}) 10.56 9.63

38 The previous year figures have been regrouped, reallocated or reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year classification and presentation.

Signature to Notes 1 to 35

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kastury & Talati On behalf of the Board of Directors

B2
CA Dhiren P.Talati J Sameer V. Shah Rashmi S. Gavli
Director Director

Partner =
Membership No. 41867




